# Bargaining Agreement Between Sheridan School District 48J And Mid-Valley Bargaining Council



2023-2026

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE		PAGE
Preamble 1		1
Article 1	Recognition	1
Article 2	Management Rights	2
Article 3	Nondiscrimination	3
Article 4	Payroll Deductions	4-5
Article 5	Teacher Evaluation	6
Article 6	Assignments and Transfers	7
Article 7	Layoff and Recall	8-9
Article 8	Calendar	10
Article 9	Working Conditions	11-13
Article 10	Curriculum Development	14
Article 11	Compensation	15-17
Article 12	Tuition Reimbursement	18
Article 13	Personnel Files	19
Article 14	Council Communications/Facilities	19
Article 15	Paid Leave	20
	Sick Leave	20
	Extreme Illness Leave	21
	Bereavement Leave	21
	Professional Leave	21
	Jury Duty Leave	21
	Witness/Appearance Leave	21
	Emergency Leave	21-22
	Personal Leave	22
Article 16	Unpaid Leave	22
	Parental Leave	22
	Military Leave	22
	Other Leave	22
	Coordination of Leave	22
Article 17	Teachers Rights/Just Cause	23

Article 18	Existing Conditions	24		
Article 19	Funding			
Article 20	Insurance	25-26		
Article 21	Savings Clause	27		
Article 22	Grievance Procedures	28-30		
Article 23	Complaint Procedure	31		
Article 24	Twenty-First Century Schools	31		
Article 25	Continuing Professional Development	32		
Article 26	Term of Agreement	32		
Appendix A Extra l	Outy Compensation	33		
Extra l	Outy Assignments	33		
Extra l	Outy Salary Schedule	34		
Appendix B Index		35		
Appendix C 2023-2024 Salary Schedule				
Appendix D 2024-2025 Salary Schedule				

## **PREAMBLE**

- A. This Agreement is entered into between the Board of Education on behalf of Sheridan School District No. 48J, Sheridan, Yamhill County, Oregon, herein referred to as the "Board" or "District," and the Mid-Valley Bargaining Council, an affiliate of O.E.A., herein referred to as the "Council."
- B. The intent of this Agreement is to set forth and record herein the basic and full agreement between the parties on those matters pertaining to wages, hours, and conditions of employment for personnel included in the bargaining unit.

## ARTICLE 1- RECOGNITION

- A. The Board recognizes the Mid-Valley Bargaining Council (Council) as the exclusive bargaining representative on wages, hours, and conditions of employment for all regular full-time and regular part-time (1/2 time or more) licensed teaching personnel employed by the District.
- B. Supervisors, administrators, confidential employees, substitutes, temporary teachers who are employed for less than the equivalent of one semester, and employees not defined in section A are specifically excluded from the bargaining unit.
- C. The purpose of this Article is to recognize the right of the bargaining agent to represent teachers in the bargaining unit in negotiations with the Board. Granting of recognition is not to be construed as obligating the Board in any way to continue any functions or policies. The Board reserves the right to create, combine or eliminate any positions as, in its judgment, is deemed necessary.
- D. The District shall electronically post the Agreement on the District website and offer printed copies to employees upon request. One paper copy will be provided to the STA President and one paper copy will be kept at the District Office.

## ARTICLE 2- MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. Except as otherwise specifically limited by the terms of this Agreement, the District retains all the customary, usual and exclusive rights, decision making prerogatives, functions and authority connected with its responsibility to manage the affairs of the District or any part of it.
- B. Without limitation, but by way of illustration, the exclusive prerogatives, functions and rights of the District shall include the following:
  - 1. To determine the services to be rendered to the patrons of the District.
  - 2. To determine and to follow the District's financial, budgetary and accounting procedures.
  - 3. To direct and supervise all operations, functions and policies of the District.
  - 4. To close or liquidate any District facilities, or relocate, reorganize or combine the work in any District facilities so long as such action is not in violation of the provisions of this Agreement or implemented in an arbitrary, capricious or discriminatory manner.
  - 5. To manage and direct the work force, including but not limited to, the right to hire, promote and retain employees; the right to determine schedules of work; the right to purchase, dispose of and assign equipment or supplies.
  - 6. To determine the need for a reduction or an increase in the work force.
  - 7. To establish, revise and implement standards for hiring, classification, promotion, quality of work, safety, materials and equipment.
  - 8. To implement new and to revise or discard, wholly or in part, old materials, equipment and facilities.
  - 9. To contract or subcontract work as may be determined by the District, provided that as to work which has been previously and regularly performed by employees in the bargaining unit, the District agrees to negotiate with the Council as to the impact of such action on employees in the unit prior to finalizing or implementing new decisions concerning such contracting or subcontracting.
  - 10. To designate and to assign all places to work. To determine the qualifications of new employees, transfers, and promotions so long as the District complies with the transfer provisions in Article 6.
  - 11. To determine the need for the qualifications of new employees, transfers, and promotions.
  - 12. To determine the need for additional educational courses, training programs, on-the-job training, and cross-training and to assign employees to such duties for such periods to be determined by the District.

# ARTICLE 3- NONDISCRIMINATION

A. The Council and the District affirm their adherence to the principles of free choice and agree that they shall not discriminate against any employee covered by this Agreement because of age, race/color, religion, gender, sexual identity, sexual orientation, national origin, physical/mental disability, (unless the disability constitutes a bona fide occupational disqualification), marital or veteran status or membership or non-membership in the Union. All references to employees in this Agreement designate both sexes and when the male gender is used, it shall be construed to include both male and female employees.

#### ARTICLE 4- PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS

## A. Association Dues

#### 1. Dues Deduction Authorization

Prior to the first dues deduction of the school year, and then for any employee who becomes a member of the Association after the start of the school year, the Association shall notify the District of bargaining unit members who have elected to have dues deducted from their paychecks and shall identify the dues to be deducted from each. The Association shall also notify the District when a bargaining unit member should no longer have dues deducted. The District shall enact dues deduction changes on the pay period following a notification.

If a bargaining unit member challenges their dues deduction with the District may request a copy of the member's dues authorization from the Association. The Association will provide the document in a timely fashion.

For any new employee who was an Association member at their prior place of employment, District shall backdate dues to their first contract day.

# 2. Processing OEA/NEA Dues Deductions

Dues deductions shall be made monthly in an amount equal to one-tenth (1/10) of annual dues, commencing with the month of October and continuing through the July pay period. Deductions for employees who join the Association after the beginning of the school year shall be prorated on a twelve-month proration schedule.

# 3. Processing Sheridan EA Dues Deductions

Sheridan Education Association dues shall be deducted from each member's paycheck. In October and November when the Union provides notification to the District.

# 4. Remittance of Dues Checks

#### a. Data to OEA

Within ten (10) days after each pay period, District shall send the Association an Excel-compatible register of the NEA/OEA/SEA dues, including voluntary Association contributions, deducted from each member's paycheck.

# b. Payment to OEA

Within ten (10) days after each pay period, District shall send to OEA, in a single payment, the combined NEA and OEA dues, including voluntary Association contributions, deducted for the month.

# c. Payment to SEA

SEA dues payments will be deducted and paid separately from OEA/NEA dues and shall be remitted to the SEA Treasurer.

# 5. Indemnification

The Association agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold the District harmless from employee or former-employee claims, orders, or judgments against the district concerning the dues deductions procedures outlined in this agreement. The Association's obligations are contingent upon the District: 1) giving the Association at least two-week's notice from the

date they knew or should have known, in writing, of any claim; 2) and fully cooperating with the Association and its designated counsel in the defense of the claim. The Association's obligation does not extend to criminal allegations or actions brought against the District by the Association. In the event the District properly invokes this paragraph, the Association will provide the attorney to defend against the claim. In the event the District wishes to use its own attorney, the District will pay the fees and costs of said attorney.

# B. Employee Information

# 1. Employee List

Each September 15<sup>th</sup>, the District shall provide to the OEA Membership Specialist an Excelcompatible database of each new employee in the bargaining unit (both active members and non-members) that includes the last four digits of their social security number, employee ID, date of birth, first date of service, FTE, classification or title, worksite, annual salary, residential address, residential phone number, personal email address and work email address. Whenever a new employee is hired into the bargaining unit, The District shall provide the above information within thirty (30) days of hire.

# 2. Change in Employment Status

The District shall promptly notify the OEA Membership Specialist whenever an employee in the bargaining unit is placed on an unpaid leave of absence, retires, is laid off, resigns, or changes their name.

# C. Tax-Sheltered Annuities

1. According to District policy DLB - Salary Deductions, the school board shall annually review the list of TSA providers and approve those from which employees may purchase TSA programs. If a program is dropped from that list, current employee's membership may be "grand fathered"; that employee may then continue to use that TSA company as long as employed by the District. If at least ten (10) teachers request, at the time of the annual review, a specific TSA company, it will be considered as a possible addition to the Board approved list. Upon review, the District will distribute the approved list annually to all teachers.

## ARTICLE 5- TEACHER EVALUATION/ASSISTANCE

- A. The Board retains the right to develop and administer teacher evaluation procedures in accordance with its previously stated prerogatives. However, the Council will be consulted prior to changing the evaluation procedures. The District shall meet and confer with the Council regarding procedures as required by the Oregon Revised Statutes. The District will comply with ORS 342.850. A professional growth option may be utilized for experienced teachers at the principal's discretion in lieu of the traditional observation/evaluation model.
  - 1. All evaluations shall be conducted by licensed administrators.
  - 2. Probationary teachers will be observed a minimum of three times during the school year; two of these should be by mid-February and at least one of these two is a formal observation.
  - 3. Licensed teachers will be observed a minimum of three times during the contract period; two times during "on-year" and one time during "off-year". At least one of these three is a formal observation.
  - 4. All formal observations will be followed with written feedback within 72 hours.
  - 5. Strategies for Success will be utilized prior to placing a teacher on a Plan of Assistance.
  - 6. Forms used for evaluation will be shared and discussed with staff before they are used by administration in observation.
  - 7. Walk through observations (less than 10 minutes in length) shall not be used as part of the formal teacher evaluation procedure. Mini observations (at least 10 minutes in length) may be used as part of the formal teacher evaluation procedure. Forms used for evaluation will be shared and discussed with staff before they are used by administration in observations.
  - 8. Walk through observations of less than 10 minutes shall not be housed in the teacher's District personnel file.
- B. If the District does not extend a contract teacher's contract by March 15 of the first year of the contract due to inefficiency, neglect of duty, inadequate performance or failure to meet the Board's expectations for improvement, the District will place the teacher on a program of assistance for improvement.
  - 1. All programs of assistance, including the use of peer assistance, will be developed and implemented according to Oregon law.
  - 2. The program of assistance for improvement shall be for a minimum of eight (8) weeks or forty (40) teacher work days (whichever is longer) in duration. The plan of assistance will be reviewed at that time.

## ARTICLE 6- ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS

- A. Grade, subject and activity assignments shall be made by the District. Teachers shall be notified in writing of any change in such assignments no later than July 15<sup>th</sup> prior to the beginning of the new school year, or prior to November 1<sup>st</sup> for any change of assignment at the conclusion of fall semester. Any change in assignment made by the District after July 15<sup>th</sup> or November 1<sup>st</sup> respectively, shall allow the reassigned staff member(s) two (2) full paid days to prepare for such reassignment after July 15<sup>th</sup> or November 1<sup>st</sup> of that given year.
- B. A teacher who requests a transfer, or is the subject of an involuntary transfer, will be given notice of the District's intent in the matter sixty (60) calendar days prior to the implementation of the transfer. In an event that a sixty (60) day calendar notice is not feasible due to extenuating circumstances, the District will not be bound to the 60-day notification. When making transfers, it is understood that the instructional requirements and best interests of the District and the pupils are of primary importance; however, teachers being involuntarily transferred shall be informed of known vacancies at the time the transfer decision is being made. Teachers shall be able to indicate their preference of assignment.
- C. In the event of an involuntary transfer, the teacher has the right to request a meeting with the Superintendent and their supervisor prior to the implementation of the transfer
- D. Any teacher desiring a transfer to another grade, subject and/or activity assignment shall make their request known within seventy-two (72) hours of the posted vacancy in order for it to be considered for the following school year. Applications for transfer must be in writing and renewed annually in order to remain valid. All employee applicants meeting minimum licensure requirements will be granted an interview.
  - A written response regarding the District's decision will be provided within seventy-two (72) hours of the interview. The District may request an extension of this timeline. Should the District deny the transfer request, an explanation will be provided in this response. Upon receipt of the decision, the teacher may request a meeting with the Superintendent regarding the decision within twenty-four (24) hours. At the conclusion of this process, the District may choose to interview other in-district candidates who do not meet the minimum licensure requirements.
- E. Notice of vacancies which occur during the school year will be shared electronically and posted on the district website. Vacancies which occur during the summer months will be posted in the District Office and emailed to licensed staff members. Requests must be submitted annually notifying the District Office of their desire to be considered for another position should one become vacant for which they are licensed.
- F. Bargaining unit members will be granted a courtesy interview for any administrative opening within the District for which the bargaining unit member is qualified. The qualifications, hiring procedures and hiring decisions, however, are not governed by this Agreement and are not subject to the grievance procedures.

# ARTICLE 7- LAYOFF (RIF) AND RECALL

# A. Layoffs

- 1. The District shall determine when layoff is necessary and which programs will be affected; however, the District agrees that such layoffs shall be implemented in accordance with the following procedures.
- 2. The District will provide a layoff list and as much notice as is practicable once the Board determines that a layoff is necessary.
- 3. Layoffs shall be made by seniority and in accordance with the provisions of ORS 342.934, except for definitions of terms that are allowable under statues. Appeals from decisions on layoffs or recalls of staff members shall be by arbitration as set forth in paragraph E of this Article, but subject to the provisions of ORS 342.934(7).
- 4. If the District wishes to retain a teacher with less seniority than a teacher to be laid off, the District must show that the teacher to be retained has more competence than the more senior teacher. Competence shall be defined as:
  - Having a valid license for the position
  - Demonstrated ability to teach: The District may consider evaluations for the prior seven (7) years as demonstrated ability to teach
  - Not being in the process of termination or dismissal
  - Not having failed to meet the expectations of a program of improvement at its conclusion.

The District may consider evaluations for the prior seven (7) years as demonstrated ability to teach.

If the District determines that the most senior, properly licensed teacher will not be retained for a position based on competence considerations, the District shall consider the willingness of the teacher to pursue additional training and educational preparation sufficient to make the teacher competent for this position.

Any credits that may be required would be subject to the tuition reimbursement formula (Article 12).

# B. Recall Procedure

- 1. Employees shall be recalled to positions they are qualified to fill when an opening occurs.
- 2. Recall shall be by inverse order and according to the same criteria as used in conducting the layoff.
- 3. Notice of recall shall be sent via certified mail to the last address given to the Personnel Office by the teacher. A teacher shall have fourteen (14) calendar days from the date the notice of recall was mailed to notify the District of his intent to return. The employee must report on the starting date specified by the District, provided the reporting date is at least twenty-four (24) calendar days from the date the notice of recall was mailed. Failure to notify the District of intent to return or to return to work within the time limits shall be considered the resignation of said employee.
- 4. Employees who are laid off from the District shall be eligible for recall as outlined above for a period of twenty-seven (27) months after the effective date of their layoff unless they:
  - a. Resign. In such event a written resignation shall be sent to the District.
  - b. Fail to return when recalled as described above.

5. Employees who are subject to a layoff after twenty (20) continuous years of service to the Sheridan School District shall be eligible for recall for thirty-six (36) months after the effective date of their layoff.

# C. Layoff Benefits

- 1. Subject to the group employee insurance carrier, the District shall extend coverage under its medical program, for the balance of the layoff to contract and probationary employees who are laid off. The District will pay the cost of such medical premiums during the first three (3) months following layoff and such coverage may be continued by the employee for the balance of the layoff provided the employee pays the premium. Employees who accept other employment shall not be eligible for the extension of group insurance coverage, except as provided under COBRA guidelines.
- 2. All benefits to which an employee was entitled at the time of layoff will be restored upon employee's return to active employment and the employee will be placed on the proper step of the salary schedule for the employee's current position according to the employee's experience and education.
- 3. Time that an employee spends on the layoff list does not count toward movement on the salary schedule nor toward accrual of benefits. But in the situation where an employee works at least 135 student contact days in a year they will receive credit for vertical movement on the salary schedule.

## D. School Closure

1. The employment relationship between the bargaining unit members and the District shall continue to the extent described in this Article during any period of school closure. During school closure due to lack of funds, the District acknowledges that the bargaining unit members are temporarily laid off, and agrees to recall, pursuant to paragraph C above, all teachers to regular duty promptly upon obtaining funds sufficient to resume normal operations. Employees are not paid for any days laid off.

# E. Review Process

1. The application of this Article may be reviewed through the grievance procedure contained elsewhere in this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 8- CALENDAR

- A. It is recognized that the Board has the right to set the annual school calendar. Prior to Board approval and adoption of the calendar, a proposed calendar, if reasonably practicable, will be referred to the teachers for input.
- B. A copy of the adopted calendar will be provided with the teacher's contract or letter of intent each spring and a copy included with the teacher's handbook each fall.
- C. In accordance with contract provisions, the District shall adopt a school calendar which represents no less than the minimum standards specified in the Oregon Administrative Rules relating to instructional hours. Existing schedules which meet or exceed state minimums shall not be affected. The Council shall be consulted prior to implementation of changes in the instructional hours.

## ARTICLE 9- WORKING CONDITIONS

- A. Normal building hours for teachers shall be eight (8) hours per day. Included in the building hours is a thirty (30) minute continuous, duty-free lunch period, during which the teacher may leave the building. The starting times and dismissal times, which may vary from school to school, shall be determined by the Board.
- B. In addition to normal building hours, the following shall apply:
  - 1. Teachers shall spend time outside of building hours to the extent necessary for adequate preparation of instruction, pupil and parent consultations. This includes parent-teacher conferences and IEP meetings. Administrators will provide an estimated amount of additional time expected to be needed to complete professional development activities.
  - 2. The administration will consult with staff members in an effort to schedule staff meetings during the regular workday. All effort shall be made to allow at least one week's notice.
- C. Teachers shall adhere to the daily schedule and shall make no commitments which preclude their being present in their assigned responsibilities. Requests for exceptions must be submitted to the principal, and their approval granted, prior to the anticipated teacher absence and/or late arrival or early leaving. Teachers shall not leave the buildings to which they are assigned during class or preparation periods without the consent of the building principal.
- D. The contract for returning teachers shall be 190 days. Within the 190-day teacher contract year, there will be five (5) paid holidays (Labor Day, Veteran's Day, Thanksgiving Day, Martin Luther King Day, Memorial Day). Teachers new to the District shall have 191-day contracts, with the extra day being devoted to orientation. New teachers will have the same holidays as returning teachers.
- E. Within the normal student contact day, there shall be provided 45 continuous minutes, or the time equivalent to a normal class period, for preparation time during which the teacher shall not be assigned any other duties.
  - If a particular school adopts a class schedule with class periods in excess of 45 minutes and the teacher preparation period is embedded within the schedule, then the administrator may assign curriculum development work for the excess time.
- F. The statewide October Inservice Day will be a non-contract day. If a teacher chooses to attend a conference/training related to the profession they will be reimbursed registration costs for the training, with prior approval of the superintendent.
- G. Within the 190 day contract year there shall be provided:
  - A four (4) day fall inservice with a minimum of one and one half (1.5) days free of meetings or other scheduled activities.
  - One (1) day at the end of each progress and grading period.
  - One and one half (1.5) work days for classroom closure at the end of the year.
  - If progress reports/conferences are required, building administrators will attempt to arrange time in the schedule for teachers to complete them.
- H. The parties agree to form a joint committee composed of six members with three (3) appointed by the Council and three (3) appointed by the District. During each year of the Agreement, the District will report to the committee and provide it with information regarding the various class sizes in the District, including special needs students, the number of preparations provided and other relevant and reasonably available data. It is intended that the District's report will occur on or about October 1 and on or about February 1 of each year. The joint committee will be charged with the responsibility to identify and examine problem areas. It is intended that suggested solutions to the identified problems would be recommended to the Board of Directors by the joint committee.
- I. For the terms of this Agreement, the District and the Council agree to formally adopt a Labor

Management Committee. The Committee shall typically consist of two to three representatives from

the District and the Council respectively. The Committee shall attempt to meet once a month to problem solve and enhance the state of labor relations in the District. Prior to each meeting, a representative from each team will jointly establish an agenda for the Committee meeting.

- J. District employees may use the district's technology to learn, practice and enhance technology skills to be used in their teaching assignments. This use shall not otherwise interfere with assigned duties, waste or endanger (misuse) district resources or violate any district standard, implied or stated. District employees are not permitted to conduct or run any private or commercial enterprise on district equipment. Staff who violate general system user prohibitions shall be subject to discipline up to and including dismissal in accordance with Board policy, negotiated agreements and applicable provisions of law.
- K. The District shall provide a safe and healthy working environment. Union members will be informed immediately upon district knowledge when they are potentially exposed to contagious diseases or environment hazards as prescribed by law and delineated by policy. They shall be instructed as to prevention and protection from the disease, illness, or hazards. If the administration in conjunction with law enforcement deems that a credible threat of violence against the school, staff, students, or themselves, school administrators will notify building staff of the threat before the start of the normal school day. If the threat occurs during the normal school day administration will notify staff as soon as they can, which may include during instructional time, to ensure staff can keep students, staff, and the overall building safe from such threat.
- L. Licensed staff shall be informed prior to being assigned student(s) who are reentering the general education classroom immediately from a more restrictive environment and that could present a safety problem to the students or staff. Licensed staff shall be provided with specific information about the known behavior pattern(s) of the student(s) and suggested strategies and trainings for managing those behaviors.
- M. The District agrees to reimburse employees for personal insurance deductible amount up to \$300 or a maximum of \$300 to be applied to the loss or damage if not insured when personal property is lost or damaged as result of theft, accident, or vandalism and when all reasonable precautions have been taken by employee to safeguard against loss or damage. This provision does not apply to automobile accidents or to accidents for which the owner of the item is the responsible party.
  - 1. The District shall promote reasonable rules and regulations outlining the procedures and documentation needed for payment of a reimbursable claim. Those rules shall be governed by the following provisions:
    - a. Employee must report the theft, accident, or vandalism to the appropriate police officials within seventy-two (72) hours of knowledge of the incident.
    - b. Employee must complete a statement for district records explaining the circumstances surrounding theft, accident, or vandalism.
  - 2. Repair or replacement costs shall be based on the most current and available rates and/or prices.
- N. Special Education licensed employees may request release time and/or curriculum rate to complete assigned caseload paperwork of up to four (4) days release time; or up to 24 hours curriculum rate; or a combination of the above two (2) options provided the combination does not exceed the cost of 24 hours curriculum rate. Special education licensed employees shall be granted flexibility in determining what days and hours will be used for the completion of caseload paperwork with approval from supervisor.

# O. Classroom Management

1. Building administrators will meet with staff semi-annually to review discipline policies and guidelines. Teachers may remove students with disciplinary problems from the classroom and refer them to the building administrators who will determine the appropriate action so long as this action complies with any applicable behavior plans or IEPs.

- 2. If the teacher communicates to the administrator a desire to confer before the student is returned to the classroom, then the administrator shall make an effort to do so. If a conference cannot be held prior to the student being returned to class a phone call or face to face conversation will occur between the teacher(s) and administrator acknowledging the student's return to class. The administrator will attempt to have the conference within three (3) school days of the student's return.
- 3. In the event that the student conduct results in a threat assessment being conducted for the student, the teacher(s) shall make an effort to attend the treat assessment, without additional compensation and the teacher will be given the support plan developed by the threat assessment team. All teachers of the student must be notified of the threat assessment meeting prior to the meeting.
  - In the event that the student's conduct results in a disciplinary hearing being conducted for the student, the teacher(s) shall make an effort to attend the disciplinary hearing, without additional compensation and the teacher will be given the support plan developed by the disciplinary hearing team. All teachers of the student must be notified of the disciplinary hearing prior to the meeting.
- 4. Training in de-escalation strategies and techniques shall be provided by the District to all interested licensed employees in an effort to improve staff-student relationships in regard to safety.
- P. The District will provide reimbursement for class fees and required materials associated with classes (such as CPR/First Aid) that the District requires a member to take. Time to complete all mandatory online training shall be provided on district time and during the normal eight (8) hour work day.

# Q. Inclement Weather

1. If school openings are delayed, licensed staff start times will be delayed by the same amount of time. Licensed staff will also communicate with their supervisor if there is any type of safety concern that could cause a delay reporting beyond that delayed start time. If school openings are canceled, staff are not to report to the building.

# R. Technology Requirements

- 1. Teachers will be notified, in writing, what classroom technology will be available to them by June 30<sup>th</sup>. Teachers will have dedicated time during building hours to adapt any district adopted curriculum to align with the technology available.
- S. The District and STA leadership will work collaboratively on a process to provide building administrators feedback for improving their overall effectiveness in school administration. This system will allow teachers to provide meaningful feedback to the District regarding their administrator/direct supervisor.

# ARTICLE 10 - CURRICULUM DEVELOPMENT

- A. The District will determine when and if curriculum work is to be done. If it is outside the normal work day or outside the teacher's contract year, participation shall be voluntary and be paid as per Article 11(K), unless a particular grant specifies a higher daily rate of pay.
- B. The building principal shall recommend personnel to be involved in curriculum development with the final selection determined by the superintendent. First consideration shall be given to those qualified staff members involved in the curriculum areas to be considered.
- C. Intellectual Property

Board Policy GCQBA provides teachers the option to petition the district for assignment of copyright or patent rights. The District and Association agree to cooperatively develop the necessary forms and designate the steps in this process. Approval of the petition will be decided by the Superintendent.

## ARTICLE 11- COMPENSATION

- A. Salary and extra duty schedules for 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 are included as Appendices A and B and C and D.
  - 1. Appendix A Extra Duty schedule.

Appendix B – index.

Appendix C – reflects the index with the previous base salary increased by 5.5% for 2023-2024.

Appendix D – reflects the index with the previous base salary increased by 5.5% for 2024-2025

Appendix E – reflects the index with the previous base salary increased by 3.5% for 2025-2026.

# Longevity:

Employees who no longer receive a step increase will be moved to a longevity step

# Matrix Formula:

3% increase between steps and 4% increase between columns, to compound exponentially. Longevity step: Calculated annually based on the last step in the column time ½ of the fiscal year salary schedule increase, or 1.75%, whichever is higher.

2. This Agreement is entered into and based upon assumptions about the amount of revenue to be received by the District in the 2023-2025 biennium and is based upon a statewide \$10.2 billion education budget.

If this budget amount is reversed by referenda or action of the executive branch, or if there is any other unexpected and substantial revenue shortfall that affects the District's ability to fund the economic provisions of this Agreement, either party may elect to reopen this Agreement for further negotiations. If this Agreement is reopened, notice will be given in writing and bargaining will begin within no more than fourteen (14) days. Negotiations for this reopening shall be conducted pursuant to ORS 243.698, but the negotiations period will be limited to ninety (90) days unless the parties mutually agree to a longer period of negotiations

- B. Movement of the salary schedule by current employees
  - 1. If a teacher completed the necessary credits for advancement to a higher educational level of the salary schedule, an adjustment in placement on the schedule, to be effective in the subsequent school year, will be made only if the teacher notifies the Superintendent prior to September 15<sup>th</sup> with proper verification, including temporary verification as outlined in Section B.4 below, as required by the District.
  - 2. When moving from one column to another, those employees at the maximum level of the previous column shall be allowed one vertical increment in the new column, unless otherwise limited by the term of this Agreement.
  - 3. For course work to count toward horizontal movement across the salary schedule, the course work must:
    - a. Be graduate courses related to the teacher's current teaching position or licensure or, when approved in advance, undergraduate credits which are part of an additional endorsement program and/or are related to the teacher's current teaching position.
    - b. Have been successfully completed as evidenced by a Pass or a grade of C or better.
  - 4. Temporary verification of successful completion of the course work will be accepted by the District when a professor/instructor supplies a written statement indicating the grade to be received. Proper verification shall be an official transcript sent by the institution to the District.

- C. Initial Placement on the salary schedule for new employees
  - 1. Horizontal Placement

New teachers will be granted credit on the salary schedule for course work as follows:

- a. Course work must be graduate courses related to the teaching position that the teacher was hired to fill and earned after the degree or preparation which led to the initial licensure required for employment.
- b. Undergraduate credits which are part of an additional endorsement program and are not courses which are general education and/or part of a program that led to initial licensure.

## 2. Vertical Placement

Vertical placement on the salary schedule will be based on one step for each verified year of teaching experience in state or federally accredited school(s).

- D. Teachers assigned to different buildings for teaching assignments shall be reimbursed for mileage at the District rate.
- E. At the express direction or assignment of the District and with teacher acceptance of assignment, teachers providing instruction to students outside normal working hours shall be paid, in addition to their regular salary, an amount equal to their regular salary times the fraction of the workday which is required of them outside the regular working day. This will not include extended contracts, zero/eighth periods, driver's training, or other nonclassroom instruction.
- F. The District will provide a running total of unused sick leave during the course of the year, and at least once each year will give each teacher an account of accumulated sick leave available to them.
- G. The District agrees to pay the employee's required contribution in accordance with ORS 238.200; and shall "pickup," assume and pay six percent (6%) employee contribution to the Public Employee Retirement Fund for the employee members then participating in the Public Employee Retirement System. Such "pickup" or payment of employee member monthly contributions to the system shall continue for the remainder of this Agreement.

The full amount of required employee contributions "picked up" or paid by the District on behalf of employees pursuant to this Agreement shall be considered as "salary" within the meaning of ORS 238.005(2) for the purposes of computing an employee member's "final average salary" within the meaning of ORS 238.005(8) but shall not be considered as "salary" for the purposes of determining the amount of employee contributions required to be contributed pursuant to ORS 238.200. Such "picked-up" or paid employee contributions shall be credited to employee accounts pursuant to ORS 238.200(2) and shall be considered to be employee contributions for the purposes of ORS Chapters 238 and 238A.

H. Payroll checks for employees' payable during summer vacation shall be issued to employees on or about the 25<sup>th</sup> day of June, July and August.

# I. Additional Compensation

- 1. Certified staff will be compensated \$50 per hour to cover an unfilled vacancy or if they are asked to cover a classroom of students in addition to their own. This compensation will be capped at \$100 a day.
- J. Extended contracts will be paid as follows on the basis of that position's salary, divided by 190 contract days. Student contact positions shall be based on employees' hourly rate. Student non-contact positions shall be paid by the state formula for substitute teachers of more than 10 days (1/190 of the base salary). The employees' hourly rate shall be based on an eight (8) hour day.

# K. Curriculum Rate

1. Curriculum rate will be paid using the following formula:

Base salary / 190 / 8 hours = 
$$X$$
  
Top salary / 190 / 8 hours =  $Y$   
( $X+Y$ ) / 2 = curriculum rate

## ARTICLE 12- TUITION REIMBURSEMENT

A. The District will provide a sum of \$17,500.00 per year for tuition reimbursement. Tuition reimbursement will be paid at the actual tuition amount, not to exceed \$560.00 per credit. A maximum of eight (8) quarter credit hours may be taken during the school year by each teacher, to the extent that funds are available in the annual District contribution. Any semester credit hours will be converted to quarter hours for purposes of computation.

In order to be eligible for reimbursement, courses shall be graduate level or undergraduate level with prior approval from the Superintendent, and successfully completed with passing grades. Staff new to the District do not qualify for reimbursement until the first college term following employment.

Requests for reimbursement for classes not related to a staff member's current assignment must have prior approval of the Superintendent.

The District reserves the right to exceed this total at its discretion, and the exercise of such discretion shall not be subject to the Grievance Procedure.

In the event that the funds allocated for tuition reimbursement are exhausted prior to the end of the year, both the District and the Association agree to have a meeting to discuss the best course of action to address the needed funds.

The Superintendent will consider applications using the following criteria:

- a. First preference District Requirements or Request
- b. Second preference State Certification
- c. Third preference Improve Educationally Relative to Specific Area of Assignment
- B. Regular part-time teachers shall have their tuition reimbursement prorated in accordance to their work schedule.
- C. The District will not provide tuition reimbursement for classes which are covered by other sources, such as scholarships, grants, etc.
- D. Reimbursement shall not be made for books, lab fees, technology fees, library fees, I.D. cards, gym fees, food, housing, transportation, supplies or other tuition expenses.
- E. The District will provide a tuition reimbursement form outlining procedures for application by the teacher. An official grade slip and receipt of payment shall be attached to the form.
- F. A teacher must remain employed with the District for at least one school year following reimbursement. A payback agreement may be issued when the amount reimbursed is \$2,250 or more.
- G. Teachers not returning to the District in September will not receive reimbursement for courses taken during the second semester or previous summer.
- H. Courses required in writing by the District shall be paid in full outside the monies budgeted for this fund.
- I. To receive District reimbursement, credits must be turned in by September 15th, January 15th, April 15th, and June 30th. No credits will be reimbursed that are received after June 30th.
- J. The District will also allow for reimbursement of the current TSPC fees incurred during the process of receiving any endorsement at district request.

## ARTICLE 13- PERSONNEL FILES

- A. Subject to Section C. of this Article and except as required by law, the official files for all teachers are confidential and shall be kept in the District office.
- B. A teacher may make a written statement relating to any evaluation, reprimand, charge, action or any matter placed in the teacher's personnel file and such teacher's statement shall be placed in the personnel file. A copy of such letter shall be provided the immediate supervisor by the teacher. A copy of any item of an evaluative or disciplinary nature that is to be put into the personnel file shall be given to the teacher. The District will have the teacher sign the file copy to verify receipt of a copy. If the teacher refuses to sign, a copy of the document placed in the file shall be mailed via certified mail, restricted delivery, return receipt requested, to the teacher's last known address.
- C. The personnel file shall be open for inspection by the teacher but shall be open only to such other persons as are officially designated by the District School Board, or by the teacher, in accordance with such rules as the District School Board shall adopt. When a teacher's representative is authorized by the teacher in writing to review the personnel file, said staff member need not be in attendance. A teacher may request the Superintendent to mark as "stale" any documents that have remained in the personnel file for a minimum of three (3) years. If the Superintendent grants the request, the document(s) will not be used in any subsequent in-district disciplinary action. Teachers may make a request only once a year. The decision of the Superintendent is final and binding and not subject to the complaint or grievance procedure. If an outside source requests a personnel file in which "stale" items exist, at the teacher's request, the District may supply a statement that verifies that there have been no ongoing problems with the particular incident.
- D. Subject to the requirements of law, items mutually agreed upon by the principal, Superintendent, and teacher may be removed.
- E. A teacher may appeal to the District School Board for removal of any item from his/her personnel file. The provisions of this paragraph may only be grieved to the District School Board whose decision shall be final and binding upon the parties. And, it is agreed that the Employment Relations Board or arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction over any matter covered by this paragraph.

# ARTICLE 14- COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS/FACILITIES

- A. Inter-school mail facilities may be used for distribution of Association communications so long as such communications are labeled as Association materials and contain the name of the authorizing Association official.
- B. Association materials may be distributed to the teachers within the immediate building at any time with the provision that this does not interfere with teaching responsibilities.
- C. Association members may make brief announcements at faculty meetings if time permits.

# ARTICLE 15-PAID LEAVE

## SICK LEAVE

# Definitions:

Covered family members include the employee's spouse, same-gender domestic partner (as described in ORS 106.300 to 106.340), biological child, adopted child, stepchild, foster child, same-gender domestic partner's child, parent, adoptive parent, stepparent, foster parent, parent-in-law, same-gender domestic partner's parent, grandparent, grandchild, and any individual with whom an employee has or had an in loco parentis\* relationship.

\*Persons "in loco parentis" are those with day-to-day responsibilities to care for or financially support a child, or who had such responsibility for the employee when the employee was a child.

Family shall be defined as teacher's (or spouse/partner) mother, father, spouse, child, brother, sister, grandparents, grandchildren, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law and anyone who lives in the household.

- A. "Sick leave" means absence from duty because of a licensed member of the bargaining agreement or family member's illness or injury.
- B. In accordance with ORS 332.507, the District shall allow each teacher 10 days of sick leave at full pay for each school year. Sick leave not taken during a given year shall be cumulative with an unlimited number of days.
- C. The District will provide a running total of unused sick leave during the course of the year, and at least once each year will give each teacher an account of accumulated sick leave available to them.
- D. When a teacher will be absent, due to personal illness or injury, they shall give notice to the principal. If the absence is for consecutive days, the principal shall be notified of the probable date of return. The Superintendent may require a physician's written verification when sick leave exceeds five (5) consecutive workdays.
- E. If an employee is injured or assaulted during the work day or while performing district related responsibilities, is unable to work for more than three days by medical certification, and workers' compensation has approved the claim, the first three (3) days of the compensable time loss will not be charged to personal accrued sick leave and instead the District will provide additional paid leave to cover the loss of time.
  - 1. You may be paid for lost wages for the first three calendar days if you are off work for fourteen (14) consecutive days or hospitalized overnight. Should this be the case, the three (3) days paid by the District shall be reimbursed to the District via payroll deductions.
- F. A teacher returning from any illness, whether or not sick leave benefits have been paid, may be required to submit to a medical examination at the expense of the District or furnish a medical doctor's certificate of good health prior to returning to work in order to safeguard the health of students and other employees.
- G. If, at the beginning of a school year, a teacher, previously employed for at least one year, is ill and unable to resume his teaching duties, and such teacher has unused accumulated sick leave days at the end of the prior school year, they will be allowed to use such previously-accumulated sick leave days while they remain ill and unable to work. Such teacher shall not be credited with additional sick leave days until they have returned full time to their teaching duties.
- H. Upon termination of employment, all accumulated sick leave benefits shall be eligible for transfer in accordance with ORS 332.507.
- I. A voluntary sick leave transfer can be established for employees.
  - 1. Members of the bargaining unit may voluntarily donate a maximum of sixteen (16) hours of sick leave to another member of the bargaining unit in a contract year. For each year of the contract, there shall be a maximum of 320 hours of sick leave which may be transferred.

- 2. The recipient of donated sick leave must have used all of their accumulated sick leave and may not be drawing Workman's Compensation at the time of transfer.
- 3. Any employee obtaining sick leave benefits by fraud, deceit, or falsified statement shall be subject to discipline up to and including dismissal.

# EXTREME ILLNESS LEAVE

A. Leave with full pay shall be allowed up to a maximum of three (3) days, noncumulative, (during any school year), for extreme illness in the family requiring the teacher's attention. Additional days may be considered and approved by the Superintendent. Days exceeding the maximum without approval of the Superintendent shall be deducted from the employee's salary at 1/190th of annual salary, or one day's salary.

# BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

A. Up to five days leave with pay may be authorized by the District in event of death of any member of the family, other relative living in the same household or other person approved by the Superintendent.

Additional paid days, per event, may be considered and approved by the Superintendent.

# PROFESSIONAL LEAVE

- A. Leave with or without pay may be granted by the District for attending educational conferences or for other purposes related to the teacher's assignments, when prior approval is received from the Superintendent or designee.
- B. If attendance is required by the District on a contract day, it shall be with full pay and reimbursement for such expenses as have received prior approval from the Superintendent or designee.

## JURY DUTY LEAVE

A. An employee shall be granted leave with pay for service upon a jury; any compensation received for serving on a jury, minus expenses, shall be reported tot the District and that compensation amount will be deducted from the employee's next paycheck. Upon being excused from jury service during any day, an employee shall immediately return to complete their assignment for the remainder of the work day.

# WITNESS/APPEARANCE LEAVE

A. Leave with pay shall be granted for an appearance before court, legislative committee, judicial body as a witness in response to a subpoena or other directive by proper authority in all matters other than those in which the teacher is a plaintiff or a defendant, except when the appearance is employment related. Any compensation received for serving as a witness, minus expenses, shall be reported to the district and that compensation amount will be deducted from the employee's next paycheck. (This provision does not apply in cases where the Council or the teacher is a complainant against the District).

#### **EMERGENCY LEAVE**

A. The District may grant emergency leave upon receiving a written request from the teacher following such absence. A maximum of one (1) day will be granted for emergencies of a serious nature beyond the teacher's control which must be taken care of during regular working hours. The teacher shall seek advance approval if the circumstances permit. This leave is noncumulative.

B. In requesting emergency leave the applicant will state in writing the general nature of the emergency and indicate why it couldn't be taken care of outside regular school hours. The written application shall be reviewed by the Superintendent, or designee, who will provide a written response. If not in agreement with the Superintendent's decision, the teacher may request in writing that the Board review the request.

## PERSONAL LEAVE

A. Twenty-four (24) hours (three (3) work days) of paid personal leave per year, noncumulative, will be allowed for each teacher. Notice to the teacher's principal or other immediate superior for personal leave (except in cases of emergency) shall be made at least 24 hours before taking such leave. Said notice shall not state the reason for taking such leave other than that it is being taken under this Article.

Such leave may be claimed in hourly increments. Employees working one-half (1/2) time or more, but less than full time shall receive one day of such leave. Unused hours will be purchased back by the District at the rate of \$18.75 per hour.

In addition to the twenty-four (24) hours (three (3) work days) of personal leave per year, employees who have worked in the District will be awarded an additional eight (8) hours of personal leave for ten (10) years of service they have worked in the District and an additional day for every five (5) years thereafter, capping at a maximum of forty (40) hours of personal leave.

# ARTICLE 16- LEAVE

# WITHOUT PAY PARENTAL LEAVE

A. The District may allow leave of absence without pay for reasons of adoption or maternity.

# MILITARY LEAVE

A. Military leave shall be allowed in accordance with federal and state laws relating to such leave.

# **OTHER LEAVE**

- A. The District may grant leaves of absence without pay or employee benefits, not to exceed one year, when in the District's judgment such leave would not seriously hamper the District operation. Partially unpaid time (with the substitute's salary deducted) will not be granted by the District.
- B. A written request for such leave will be reviewed by the District with a written reply submitted to the teacher.

## **COORDINATION OF LEAVE**

A. This agreement is not intended to add to nor reduce an employee's right to leave(s) pursuant to state and/or federal law.

## ARTICLE 17- TEACHERS RIGHTS/JUST CAUSE

- A. No teacher shall be disciplined, reprimanded verbally or in writing, without just cause.
  - 1. Reprimands shall be made privately and not in the presence of students, parents, teachers, or members of the community.
  - 2. The provisions of Section A may only be grieved to the District School Board whose decision shall be final and binding upon the parties.
- B. This Article shall not apply to:
  - 1. the nonrenewal or dismissal of probationary teachers or,
  - 2. to the nonextension or dismissal of contract teachers; such cases shall be governed solely and exclusively by the provisions of ORS 342.805, et seq.; such cases are not covered by the provisions of this collective bargaining agreement.
- C. All teachers new to the District will serve a three (3) year probationary period.
- D. Whenever a teacher is directed to meet with an administrator or other representative of the District regarding a matter which could result in:
  - 1. disciplinary action,
  - 2. dismissal,
  - 3. nonrenewal,
  - 4. layoff,
  - 5. or nonextension of contract,

...the teacher shall be given a minimum of one day's prior written notice of the reason for such meeting and of the right to have a representative of the Council or legal counsel present during the meeting.

- E. If during a meeting with a parent or community member it appears to the teacher that complaints are being made that could result in the discipline of the teacher, that teacher has the right to ask for a witness to be present before continuing the meeting. The provisions of this paragraph may only be grieved to the District School Board whose decision shall be final and binding upon the parties.
- F. The personal life of a member is not a concern of the District unless it can be reasonably shown to have a negative effect on the performance of the duties and responsibilities to which the member is assigned.
- G. The teacher shall maintain the right and responsibility to determine grades and other evaluations of students and will be part of a team that evaluates students who have not met grade level requirements. The District shall consult with the teacher about any grade that the District decides to change. The District shall accept full legal responsibility for any such change.

# ARTICLE 18- EXISTING CONDITIONS

A. Only such existing and future work rules and benefits as are specifically covered by the terms of this Agreement shall be affected by recognition of the Council and execution of this Agreement.

# ARTICLE 19- FUNDING

A. Both parties recognize that revenue needed to fund the compensation provided by this Agreement must be approved through the established budget procedures and in certain circumstances by vote of the citizens, and thus, agree to make every effort to reach future Agreements prior to final approval of the Proposed Budget.

## ARTICLE 20- INSURANCE

## A. District Contribution:

- 1. During the 2023-2024 school year, the District shall contribute a maximum of \$1550 per month per employee toward District-sponsored full family medical, vision and dental insurance premiums. Any premium costs above this maximum amount shall be paid by the members via payroll deduction using a flexible spending account (IRS 125 plan).
- 2. During the 2024-2025 school year, the District shall contribute a maximum of \$1575 per month per employee toward District-sponsored full family medical, vision and dental insurance premiums. Any premium costs above this maximum amount shall be paid by the members via payroll deduction using a flexible spending account (IRS 125 plan).
- 3. During the 2025-2026 school year, the District shall contribute a maximum of \$1600 per month per employee toward District-sponsored full family medical, vision and dental insurance premiums. Any premium costs above this maximum amount shall be paid by the members via payroll deduction using a flexible spending account (IRS 125 plan).
- B. Any change of plan(s) or carrier(s) shall be made by a committee of Sheridan School District teachers selected by the Sheridan Teachers' Association. The medical plans offered shall be provided within the limitations of a single carrier. Employees working one-half time or more, but less than full time shall receive prorated insurance benefits based on the composite unit rate. Employees working less than one-half time are not entitled to insurance benefits.
- C. All insurance coverages begin October 1<sup>st</sup> and are paid through September 30<sup>th</sup>, the anniversary dates. Employees leaving the District prior to the end of the school year shall have their insurance coverage cease at the end of the month following their departure. Part-time employees shall have the District's portion of the premium prorated. The benefit programs identified herein shall be provided only in accordance with the underwriting rules and regulations set forth by the carriers in the policies obtained by the policyholder.
- D. A teacher who leaves District employment may voluntarily notify the District when the teacher obtains a new job and is eligible for insurance coverage with a new employer. Following the teacher's notice, the District's obligation towards premium payments as provided herein shall cease on the first day coverage is provided by the new employer.
- E. Insurance coverages for domestic partners will be subject to the same limitations and conditions applicable to other employees. "Domestic partners" of an employee are eligible for coverage under the district insurance plans, if they meet the following criteria:
  - Share a close personal relationship and are responsible for each other's common welfare;
  - Are each other's sole domestic partner for a minimum of 12 months prior to the enrollment date;
  - Are not married to anyone nor have had another domestic partner enrolled in the health plan within the prior 12 months;
  - Share the same regular and permanent residence, with the current intent to continue doing so indefinitely.
- F. Sheridan School District agrees that teachers eligible for medical/dental/vision benefits may choose to opt out of the group insurance program by notifying the District, in writing, of his/her desire to opt out, and by providing proof that the individual is covered by other medical insurance coverage.
  - Members who opt out of the group insurance will receive 50% of current monthly contribution minus any OEBB sure charge, up to \$100, toward a HRA for allowable medical costs. Upon terminating employment member will have ability to spend down funds that

have been placed in an account for qualifying expenditures until all funds have been expended. Upon death HRA funds will transfer to beneficiaries as per rules of HRA plan.

Sheridan School District agrees that teachers who participate in the Evergreen Plan with a combination of HSA will be given full current insurance contribution toward insurance plan with health savings account.

The number of teachers allowed to opt out shall be determined by the limits established in the medical plans to maintain group participation.

The opting out process must be completed prior to September 7<sup>th</sup> of each year.

# G. Retirement:

1. Retired employees will be given the option to purchase insurance through the District carrier.

# ARTICLE 21- SAVINGS CLAUSE

A. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid by operation of law or by any tribunal of competent jurisdiction, or if compliance with or enforcement of any provision should be restrained by any such tribunal, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and upon the request of either the Board or the Council the parties shall enter into negotiations for the purpose of attempting to arrive at a mutually-satisfactory replacement for such provision.

## ARTICLE 22- GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

#### Section I Definitions

- A. "Grievance" shall mean a complaint by the Council, an employee, or a group of employees that there has been to him/her or them a violation or inequitable application of any provision of the Agreement or Board Policy.
- B. "Grievant" is the Council, person, or persons who has/have the grievance and is/are presenting the complaint, also referred to as the complainant.
- C. "Party in interest" is either the person or persons making the complaint or the person or persons against whom the complaint is made.
- D. "Consultant" is the one who advises either party in interest.
- E. "Representative" is the one who may speak for and/or advise a party in interest.
- F. "Immediate supervisor" is the one who has direct administrative or supervisory responsibilities over the grievant in the areas of grievance as stated in School Board policy.
- G. "Days" when used in this Article shall, except where otherwise indicated, mean working days.
- H. "Persons officially involved" means the Superintendent, his/her representative and/or consultant and witnesses, the grievant, his/her representative and/or consultants, and witnesses.
- I. "Council" means the organization representing the licensed personnel which has been selected by a majority vote of the respective employees.

# Section II General Provisions

- A. These procedures should be processed as rapidly as possible; the number of days indicated for settlement or appeal at each level should be considered a maximum. Time limits will not be extended except by mutual written agreement of the parties involved at any level of the procedures.
- B. All parties should attempt to complete the procedures by the end of the school year. The parties shall make good faith effort to shorten the number of days provided at the various steps in order to finish by the end of the school year. However, the Council and the District both recognize the desirability of not processing grievances that do not require prompt resolution during the summer recess period. Accordingly, at the written request of either party, a grievance shall be held over until the following school year unless the other party submits a memorandum stating reasons why the grievance shall not be continued to the following school year.
- C. All parties in interest have a right to consultants or representatives of their own choosing at each level of these grievance procedures. Every effort should be made to resolve differences through informal activities before formal procedures are used.
- D. Failure at any level of this procedure by the grievant to appeal a grievance to the next level within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that level. Failure at any level of this procedure to communicate the decision in writing on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the grievant to proceed to the next level.
- E. All documents, communications and records of a grievance shall be written and will be filed in the School District Office separately from the personnel files. All documents, communications and records of a grievance shall be made available to all parties involved.
- F. Forms for processing grievances shall be prepared by the Superintendent or his/her designated representative in cooperation with the Council and will be printed and given appropriate distribution by the parties so as to facilitate operation of the grievance procedure.

- G. In the course of investigating any grievance, representatives of either party in interest who need to contact an employee, or student in school, will contact the principal/supervisor of the building being visited and will state the purpose of the visit immediately upon arrival.
- H. Every effort will be made by all parties to avoid the unnecessary involvement of students in the grievance procedure.
- I. Every effort will be made by all parties to avoid interruption of classroom and/or any other school-sponsored activities.
- J. All parties in interest will process grievances after the regular workday or at other times which do not interfere with assigned duties.
- K. Each grievance shall have to be initiated within twenty-one (21) days after the occurrence of the cause for the complaint; however, if the grievant did not become aware of the occurrence until a later date, then the grievant must initiate action within twenty-one (21) days following first knowledge or when the grievant should have known of the cause. The employee shall be considered to have no reasonable grievance in any event if the complaint has not been filed within one hundred twenty (120) days from the date of occurrence of the facts which give rise to the grievance. The employee may petition the superintendent to waive the 120 days requirement.
- L. The timelines contained in this grievance procedure shall be strictly enforced. In the event the grievant does not comply precisely with the stated timelines, the grievance shall be considered terminated
- M. There shall be no restraint, interference, discrimination, or reprisal exerted on any employee choosing to use these procedures for resolution of a grievance.

# Section III Grievance Steps

Before the grievance is handled on a formal basis the grievant will discuss the grievance with the principal and/or Superintendent, either individually or accompanied by a representative, with the objective of resolving the matter informally. If the grievant is not satisfied with the disposition of the informal grievance, the grievant may proceed through the various levels of grievance.

# A. Step I Immediate Supervisor

1. The grievant shall refer the grievance to his/her immediate supervisor within the timelines set forth above. The grievance shall be in writing and state the specific provisions of the Agreement in dispute and the remedy requested. The response of the immediate supervisor shall be due five (5) days after the grievance has been submitted.

# B. Step II Superintendent

1. If the grievance has not been settled, it may be presented to the Superintendent within five (5) days after the response of the immediate supervisor is due. The response of the Superintendent shall be due five (5) days after the grievance has been submitted.

# C. Step III School Board

1. If the grievance has not been settled, it may be presented to the Board of Directors within twenty (20) days after the response of the immediate supervisor is due. The response of the Board shall be due ten (10) days after the grievance has been submitted.

# D. Step IV Arbitration

- 1. If the grievance has not been settled, only the Council and not the employee, may, within ten (10) days after the response of the Board of Directors is due, serve notice of its intent to arbitrate the grievance. Such notice shall be in writing and delivered to the Superintendent.
- 2. After the Council has indicated its desire to take a grievance to arbitration, the Council shall request the Employment Relations Board to submit a list of the names of five (5) arbitrators

to the parties. The parties shall select an arbitrator from the list by such method as they may jointly elect, or if they are unable to agree upon such method, then by the method of alternate striking of names under which the party that is to strike first shall be determined by lot. Nothing in this section shall prohibit the parties from agreeing upon a permanent arbitrator or permanent list. The arbitrator's decision shall be final and binding, but he/she shall have no power to alter, modify, add to, or detract from the terms of the Agreement. His decision shall be within the scope and terms of the Agreement and in writing. The arbitrator's remedy shall be limited in retroactivity to a period not exceeding one hundred twenty (120) days prior to his award.

- 3. The arbitrator's fee and expenses shall be shared equally between parties. All other expenses shall be borne exclusively by the party requiring the service or item for which payment is to be made.
- 4. Arbitration does not apply to violation or inequitable application of board policy.

## ARTICLE 23- COMPLAINT PROCEDURE

Any written complaint regarding a teacher's responsibilities made to any member of the administration by any parent, or other person shall, within five (5) school days, be initiated according to the procedure outlined below:

- 1. Meeting with the Superintendent and/or Principal. The Administrator receiving the complaint and/or the Superintendent shall meet with the teacher to apprise the teacher of the full nature of the complaint, and they shall attempt to resolve the matter informally. The District will provide the name of complainant, date of complaint, and any written information to the teacher. Complaint procedures will remain informal vs. legal and formal.
- 2. Right to Representation. The teacher shall have the right to be represented at any meetings or conferences regarding any complaint at which the teacher is in attendance.

# 3. Procedure:

Step One: Any written complaint will be reviewed by the pertinent administrator(s) in an attempt to resolve the matter to the satisfaction of all parties concerned.

Step Two: If the superintendent and/or principal are unable to resolve a complaint to the satisfaction of the teacher, the results of the investigation, along with administrator recommendation, shall be forwarded in writing to the Board with a copy to the teacher.

Step Three: After receipt of the findings and recommendations of the Superintendent, and before action thereon, the Board shall afford the parties the opportunity to meet with the Board and show cause why the recommendations of the Superintendent should not be followed. Copies of the final action by the Board shall be forwarded to the teacher. Consistent with ensuring personal confidentiality to the teacher, the Board may communicate its final action to the complainant as appropriate.

# ARTICLE 24- TWENTY-FIRST CENTURY SCHOOL COUNCILS

- A. 21 Century Schools Councils shall operate in accordance with ORS 329.704. No School Council shall be required to perform tasks other than what the law provides.
- B. Each School Council shall have secret ballot elections in which all bargaining unit members are eligible to participate (teacher positions). There shall be staggered terms for positions. Also, Councils shall determine a selection process and a term office for the chairperson.
- C. Site Council activities will not occur during any student contact time, unless approved by the District Superintendent.
- D. Participation or lack of participation in School Site Councils shall not be considered a subject for any evaluation, discipline, or dismissal action. Participation in the Council shall be voluntary.
- E. Site Councils shall not violate the provisions of the contract at any time.

# ARTICLE25- CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The Board recognizes the need to collaborate with the Council to design professional learning opportunities for licensed staff. The District will establish a committee made up of licensed staff and administrators that will plan and create professional learning opportunities in order to enhance professional performance, promote achievement of high standards for all students and align with District goals for continuous improvement.

# ARTICLE26- TERM OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall be in full force and effect upon ratification through June 30, 2023. Retroactive payment shall be made no later than thirty (30) days following the date of signing.
- B. The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this agreement, each had the unlimited right and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter appropriate for collective bargaining, and that the understandings and agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of the right and opportunity are set forth in the Agreement. Therefore, the Board and the Council, for the life of this Agreement, each voluntarily and unqualifiedly waives the right, and each agrees that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively with respect to any other matter, even though such subjects or matters may not have been within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time that they negotiated or signed this Agreement. All terms and conditions of employment not covered by this Agreement shall continue to be subject to the Board's direction and control.
- C. The Council shall, not later than March 30<sup>th</sup> of the final year of the contract, give the District its notice of intention to open negotiations for a successor agreement.

Signed this 18th day of June, 2025

**Board Chairperson** 

Superintendent

STÁ Representative

## APPENDIX A

#### EXTRA DUTY COMPENSATION

Extra Duty contracts will be designated as one of four categories: Leader 1, Leader 2, Leader 3, or Advisor. When a new position is needed, the District agrees to negotiate the designation of a position with the Council. Chart includes examples of specific designations.

#### Leader 1

This designation includes any positions that require the supervision of staff or high school students fro a season, semester, or year. These positions may include:

- Data collection and analysis,
- Managing a budget,
- Regularly informing colleagues and administrators,
- Developing plans for improvement.

Aside from varsity head coach, these are typically year long positions.

#### Leader 2

This designation includes any assistant varsity coach, MS head coach, or any position that supports a Leader 1 or administrator. This category may include a Leader 2 position that is paid by season or semester. This category does not include any single season varsity head coaches.

#### Leader 3

This designation includes any MS assistant coach.

#### Advisor

This designation includes any position that acts as an advisor of a student or staff run activity.

#### **Other Provisions:**

National Board Certification - \$1,500 stipend

Dance or bus chaperones, ticket sellers, crowd control, or other event duty shall be paid \$25 per event. A maximum of three hours will constitute an event. These events will not be assigned but teachers shall have first choice of taking assignments. Events lasting over three hours shall be paid \$10 per hour. Time served shall be paid in hourly increments, with fractions of hours rounded up to the next hour.

Teachers serving as supervisors of elementary concerts shall be paid \$25 per concert

# EXTRA DUTY SALARY SCHEDULE

Leader 1	Leader 2	Leader 3	Advisor
1	2	3	4
Head HS Coach	HS Assistant/JV Coach MS Head Coach	MS Assistant Coaches	Club Advisor
FFA	Leadership/ Student Activities Coordinator	Drama	Yearbook
Teacher Leader		Music – Vocal, Pep Band, Instrumental	
AVID Elective Teacher			
Teacher Mentor			
Special Education Case Management			
TAG Coordinator			

# INDEX PERCENTAGE

	1	2	3	4
BA 1	9.5%	7.2%	5.6%	3.3%
BA 1	9.9%	7.4%	5.8%	3.4%
BA 1	10.3%	7.6%	6%	3.5%
MA 1	10.7%	7.9%	6.2%	3.6%
MA 1	11.1%	8.2%	6.4%	3.7%

MA 3	MS Athletic Director	12%
MA 5	HS Athletic Director	12%

# APPENDIX B

# **SHERIDAN SCHOOL DISTRICT 48J**

# **INDEX**

				BA+	BA + 84/	
Step	BA	BA+ 24	BA + 45	60/MA	MA + 24	MA + 45
1	1.00000	1.04000	1.08160	1.12486	1.16986	1.21665
2	1.03000	1.07120	1.11405	1.15861	1.20495	1.25315
3	1.06090	1.10334	1.14747	1.19337	1.24110	1.29075
4	1.09273	1.13644	1.18189	1.22917	1.27834	1.32947
5	1.12551	1.17053	1.21735	1.26604	1.31669	1.36935
6	1.15927	1.20565	1.25387	1.30403	1.35619	1.41043
7	1.19405	1.24181	1.29149	1.34315	1.39687	1.45275
8	1.22987	1.27907	1.33023	1.38344	1.43878	1.49633
9	1.26677	1.31744	1.37014	1.42494	1.48194	1.54122
10	1.30477	1.35696	1.41124	1.46769	1.52640	1.58746
11	1.34392	1.39767	1.45358	1.51172	1.57219	1.63508
12	1.38423	1.43960	1.49719	1.55707	1.61936	1.68413
13	1.42576	1.48279	1.54210	1.60379	1.66794	1.73466
14		1.52728	1.58837	1.65190	1.71798	1.78670
15		1.57309	1.63602	1.70146	1.76952	1.84030
16			1.68510	1.75250	1.82260	1.89551
17			1.73565	1.80508	1.87728	1.95237

# APPENDIX C

# SHERIDAN SCHOOL DISTRICT 48J

# 2023-2024 Salary Schedule

# 5.5% Increase Over 2022-2023

Step	BA	BA + 24	BA + 45	BA + 60/MA	BA + 84/ MA + 24	MA + 45
1	45,830	47,663	49,570	51,553	53,615	55,760
2	47,205	49,093	51,057	53,099	55,223	57,432
3	48,621	50,566	52,589	54,692	56,880	59,155
4	50,080	52,083	54,166	56,333	58,586	60,930
5	51,582	53,646	55,791	58,023	60,344	62,758
6	53,130	55,255	57,465	59,764	62,154	64,641
7	54,724	56,913	59,189	61,557	64,019	66,580
8	56,365	58,620	60,965	63,403	65,940	68,577
9	58,056	60,379	62,794	65,306	67,918	70,634
10	59,798	62,190	64,678	67,265	69,955	72,754
11	61,592	64,056	66,618	69,283	72,054	74,936
12	63,440	65,977	68,616	71,361	74,216	77,184
13	65,343	67,957	70,675	73,502	76,442	79,500
14		69,995	72,795	75,707	78,735	81,885
15		72,095	74,979	77,978	81,097	84,341
16			77,228	80,318	83,530	86,872
17			79,545	82,727	86,036	89,478
Longevity	67,140	74,078	81,733	85,002	88,402	91,938

# APPENDIX D

# SHERIDAN SCHOOL DISTRICT 48J

# 2024-2025 Salary Schedule

# 5.5% Increase Over 2023-2024

Step	BA	BA + 24	BA + 45	BA + 60/MA	BA + 84/ MA + 24	MA + 45
1	48,351	50,285	52,296	54,388	56,564	58,826
2	49,801	51,794	53,865	56,020	58,261	60,591
3	51,295	53,347	55,481	57,700	60,008	62,409
4	52,834	54,948	57,146	59,431	61,809	64,281
5	54,419	56,596	58,860	61,214	63,663	66,210
6	56,052	58,294	60,626	63,051	65,573	68,196
7	57,734	60,043	62,445	64,942	67,540	70,242
8	59,466	61,844	64,318	66,891	69,566	72,349
9	61,249	63,699	66,247	68,897	71,653	74,519
10	63,087	65,610	68,235	70,964	73,803	76,755
11	64,980	67,579	70,282	73,093	76,017	79,058
12	66,929	69,606	72,390	75,286	78,297	81,429
13	68,937	71,694	74,562	77,545	80,646	83,872
14		73,845	76,799	79,871	83,066	86,388
15		76,061	79,103	82,267	85,558	88,980
16			81,476	84,735	88,124	91,649
17			83,920	87,277	90,768	94,399
Longevity	70,833	78,152	86,228	89,677	93,264	96,995

# APPENDIX E

#### **SALARY SCHEDULE** 2025-26 3.5% Increase over 2024-25 BA + 84/**BA + 45 BA + 60/MA** BA BA + 24MA + 45 MA + 24 2 Step 1 3 4 6 1 50,044 52,046 54,128 56,293 58,545 60,887 2 51,545 62,714 53,607 55,752 57,982 60,301 3 53,091 55,215 57,425 59,721 62,110 64,595 4 54,684 56,871 59,148 61,513 63,973 66,533 5 56,325 58,577 60,922 63,358 65,892 68,529 6 58,015 60,334 62,750 65,259 67,869 70,585 7 59,755 62,145 64,633 67,217 69,905 72,703 8 61,548 64,009 66,572 69,234 72,002 74,884 9 63,394 65,929 68,568 71,311 74,162 77,130 10 65,296 67,907 70,625 73,450 76,387 79,444 78,679 11 67,255 69,944 72,744 75,654 81,827 12 69,273 72,042 74,926 77,924 81,039 84,282 13 71,351 74,203 77,174 80,262 83,470 86,810 14 76,430 79,489 82,670 85,974 89,414 78,723 81,874 85,150 88,553 92,096 15 16 84,330 87,704 91,210 94,859 17 86,860 90,335 93,946 97,705 LONGEVITY 72,073 79,520 87,737 91,246 94,896 98,692

EXTRA DUTY						
STEP	LEADER 1	LEADER 2	LEADER 3	ADVISOR		
1	4,754	3,603	2,802	1,651		
2	4,954	3,703	2,903	1,701		
3	5,155	3,803	3,003	1,752		
4	6,023	4,391	3,490	2,027		
5	6,249	4,503	3,603	2,083		

MS Athletic Director	7,167
HS Athletic Director	7,603

# Memorandum of Understanding Between Sheridan School District and the Sheridan Teachers Association Modified Four Day Week

This agreement will remain in effect for the 2023-24 and 2024-25 contract years. Both parties agree to review the MOU at the end of the 2023-24 school year.

# ARTICLE 6- ASSIGNMENTS AND TRANSFERS

A. Grade, subject and activity assignments shall be made by the District. Teachers shall be notified in writing of any change in such assignments no later than July 15th prior to the beginning of the new school year, or prior to November 1st for any change of assignment at the conclusion of fall semester. Any change in assignment made by the District after July 15th or November 1st respectively, shall allow the reassigned staff member(s) *17 hours* to prepare for such reassignment after July 15th or November 1st of that given year.

#### ARTICLE 9- WORKING CONDITIONS

- A. Normal building hours for teachers shall be 8 hours during inservice days, 8.5 hours during student contact days, and 6 hours on Fridays. Included in the building hours is a thirty (30) minute continuous, duty-free lunch period, during which the teacher may leave the building. The starting times and dismissal times, which may vary from school to school, shall be determined by the Board.
- B. The weeks of January 15, February 19 and May 27, Monday is a holiday and therefore students will attend on Friday of that week. Teachers will work 8.5 hours Tuesday Friday of those designated weeks.
- G. Within the 190 day contract year there shall be provided:
- A four (4) day fall inservice with a minimum of one and one half (1.5) days free of meetings or other scheduled activities.
- 8 hours (with at least six consecutive hours) at the end of each progress and grading period.
- One and one half (1.5) work days for classroom closure at the end of the year.
- If progress reports/conferences are required, building administrators will attempt to arrange time in the schedule for teachers to complete them.
- N. Special Education licensed employees may request release time and/or curriculum rate to complete assigned caseload paperwork of up to 34 hours of release time; or up to 24 hours curriculum rate; or a combination of the above two (2) options provided the combination does not exceed the cost of 24 hours curriculum rate. Special education licensed employees shall be granted flexibility in determining what days and hours will be used for the completion of caseload paperwork with approval from the supervisor.
- P. The District will provide reimbursement for class fees and required materials associated with classes (such as CPR/First Aid) that the District requires a member to take. Time to complete all

mandatory online training shall be provided on district time and during the normal eight (8) hour inservice days.

## **ARTICLE 11- COMPENSATION**

J. Extended contracts will be paid as follows on the basis of that position's salary, divided by 190 contract days. Student contact positions shall be based on employees' hourly rate. Student noncontact positions shall be paid by the state formula for substitute teachers of more than 10 days (1/190 of the base salary). The employees' hourly rate shall be based on an eight (8) hour day.

# **ARTICLE 15- PAID**

# **LEAVE SICK LEAVE**

B. In accordance with ORS 332.507, the District shall allow each teacher 85 hours of sick leave at full pay for each school year. Sick leave not taken during a given year shall be cumulative with an unlimited number of days.

## **EXTREME ILLNESS LEAVE**

A. Leave with full pay shall be allowed up to a maximum of three (3) days or up to 25.5 hours, noncumulative, (during any school year), for extreme illness in the family requiring the teacher's attention. Additional days may be considered and approved by the Superintendent. Days exceeding the maximum without approval of the Superintendent shall be deducted from the employee's salary at 1/190th of annual salary, or one day's salary.

#### **BEREAVEMENT LEAVE**

A. Up to five days, or up to 42.5 hours, leave with pay may be authorized by the District in event of death of any member of the family, other relative living in the same household or other person approved by the Superintendent. Additional paid days, per event, may be considered and approved by the Superintendent.

# **EMERGENCY LEAVE**

A. The District may grant emergency leave upon receiving a written request from the teacher following such absence. A maximum of one (1) day, or up to 8.5 hours, will be granted for emergencies of a serious nature beyond the teacher's control which must be taken care of during regular working hours. The teacher shall seek advance approval if the circumstances permit. This leave is noncumulative.

# **PERSONAL LEAVE**

A. Twenty-five and one half (25.5) hours of paid personal leave per year, noncumulative, will be allowed for each teacher. Notice to the teacher's principal or other immediate superior for personal leave (except in cases of emergency) shall be made at least 24 hours before taking such leave. Said notice shall not state the reason for taking such leave other than that it is being taken under this Article. Such leave may be claimed in hourly increments. Employees working one-half (1/2) time or more, but less than full time shall receive one day of such leave. Unused hours will be purchased back by the District at the rate of \$18.75 per hour. In addition to the

Sheridan School District 48J

twenty-five and one half (25.5) hours of personal leave per year, employees who have worked in the District will be awarded an additional eight (8.5) hours of personal leave for ten (10) years of service they have worked in the District and an additional day for every five (5) years thereafter, capping at a maximum of forty (42.5) hours of personal leave.

DocuSigned by:	
Tim Hart	11/6/2023
Tim Hart	Date
President	
Sheridan Teachers Association	
DocuSigned by:	
Donie Vickery	11/6/2023
Dorie Vickery	Date
Superintendent	